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1 BEFORE THE ARI ZONA POWER PLANT LS- 467 1 BE | T REMEMBERED t hat the above-entitled and
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1 I NDEX TO EXHI BI TS
) 1 CHMN STAFFORD: Let'sgo on the record.
3 N DESCRIPTI ON _ AMITTED | Now is the time set for the prehearing
(No-exhibits.) 3 conference in the application of Chimney Canyon Solar,
4 4 LLC, Docket No. L-21367A-25-0232-00255 for Line Siting
5 5 Case 255.
6 6 Let's start with appearances.
7 7 Mr. Crockett.
8 8 MR. CROCKETT: Thank you, Chairman
9 9 Stafford. Jeff Crockett appearing on behalf of the
10 10 applicant, Chimney Canyon Solar, LLC.
11 11 Let mejust quickly introduce those that
12 12 areonthecall. We have Jake Almquist and Deandra Cass
13 13 who are with the applicant. And we've got Anna Shamey
14 14 and Jennifer Skulstad and Deborah Huntley that are with
15 15 TetraTech. | think that's our crew today.
16 16 CHMN STAFFORD: All right. Sowe've got
17 17 lodging arranged for the committee members at the Little
18 18 America?
19 19 MR. CROCKETT: Yes, wedo. It'sal setto
20 20 go.
21 21 CHMN STAFFORD: Excellent. | have not seen
22 22 any requeststo intervene.
23 23 MR. CROCKETT: There have been no requests
24 24 tointervene. There was someone today that filed a
25 25 limited appearance. That's Bryan Jolley who we know of.
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1 Wedon't think he's hostile toward the project. He's 1 those are aso on the project website; correct?
2 actualy been interested in possibly becoming one of the 2 MR. CROCKETT: Yes, they are. There'sa
3 participating landowners. 3 whole host of things on the project website. Soit's
4 We have reached out to him today regarding 4 very well done.
5 hisrequeststhat he filed just to see what he's planning 5 CHMN STAFFORD: All right. | assumeyou've
6 interms of public comment next week. But, like |l said, 6 had an opportunity to review the agenda. Are there any
7 at this point, we don't anticipate an antagonistic 7 objections or additionsto it?
8 response. 8 MR. CROCKETT: No.
9 CHMN STAFFORD: All right. Well, it looks 9 CHMN STAFFORD: We'e starting the hearing
10 like they docketed it calling it alimited appearance, 10 Monday the 15th at 1:00, with public comments at
11 but | looked at it and that is not what itis. It'sjust 11 5:30 that day.
12 hisrequest to make public comment, which he will be 12 How many days do you anticipate the hearing
13 alowed to do when we have public comment on the 15th at |13 tolast?
14 5:30. SoI'm not going to enter his e-mail as an exhibit 14 MR. CROCKETT: We should finish on Tuesday
15 at the hearing. 15 unlessthe committee electsto take atour. Asyou
16 MR. CROCKETT: Okay. That'sfinewith us. 16 probably are aware, the tour would take a fair amount of
17 CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. Would you agreethat |17 time. It'salittle over an hour each way driving, so
18 May 5, 2026, isthe time limit for the committee to act 18 I'm guessing three to four hours would fill up Tuesday
19 in compliance with statute? 19 morning. Potentially we could still finish on Tuesday,
20 MR. CROCKETT: Yes. 20 but atour would maybe push usinto Wednesday.
21 CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. And you filed your |21 CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.
22 outreach, which had the notice to the affected 22 MR. CROCKETT: Wedo have avirtua tour
23 jurisdictions, certified mail with Pinal County and 23 ready to present.
24 Arizona State -- not Pinal. Apache County? 24 CHMN STAFFORD: Weéll, let's hope that's
25 MR. CROCKETT: Navajo County. 25 sufficient because I'm not inclined to do atour for
Page 6 Page 8
1 CHMN STAFFORD: Navajo County. And State | 1 this. But we'll see what the will of the membersis.
2 Land Department; right? 2 | assume you have Peaks doing the --
3 MR. CROCKETT: Correct. And they both 3 MR. CROCKETT: Yes, Peaks Audiois our
4 received notice of hearing, the procedural order, and the 4 audio/video team for the hearing.
5 agenda. 5 CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. All right, well
6 CHMN STAFFORD: And you complied withthe | 6 have sign-in forms for the public comment.
7 posting and publishing requirements. Looks like you 7 MR. CROCKETT: Yes.
8 published on the 12th and 13th, more than 30 days before 8 CHMN STAFFORD: Isthere -- there's not
9 the hearing start date. 9 going to be any kind of need for security at this
10 And you had the three signs; is that 10 hearing, isthere?
11 correct. 11 MR. CROCKETT: I don't think so. We
12 MR. CROCKETT: That's correct. Thesigns 12 haven't -- we haven't had any indication that there would
13 areup. And earlier today | posted the affidavit of 13 be aneed for security.
14 Jennifer Skulstad that evidences the posting of those 14 CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. The attire for the
15 signson November 24. 15 hearing is business casual .
16 CHMN STAFFORD: All right. And then the 16 Are there any other issues regarding the
17 application, those were made available to two different 17 hearing itself?
18 libraries? 18 MR. CROCKETT: No. No issuesregarding the
19 MR. CROCKETT: Yes, it has. | believe one 19 hearing itself.
20 library and then the Holbrook City Hall. 20 I'll just mention to you, Chairman, that
21 Isthat, Jennifer -- | see Jennifer nodding 21 the application, when we filed, had a map of the proposed
22 her head yes. 22 corridors. We have updated that dightly, primarily the
23 So they have the application and the 23 areaaround the APS Sitgreaves Substation -- switchyard,
24 transcript of the prefiling conference. 24 rather. We've provided the updated project map with the
25 CHMN STAFFORD: Excellent. Excellent. And |25 revised and updated corridor on the project website. And
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1 well have that as an exhibit for the hearing. 1 MR. CROCKETT: We have not.
2 CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. What'sthe changeto | 2 CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. It'll probably get
3 the corridor? 3 filed this afternoon or tomorrow.
4 MR. CROCKETT: You know, it broadened out | 4 MR. CROCKETT: | hopeso. Thosetend to
5 around the APS switchyard. And | think that'sreally the 5 comein at the 11th hour.
6 most significant change, if not the only one. 6 CHMN STAFFORD: Yeah. All right. So
7 Let me ask either Jake or Deandrato 7 you've got the draft CEC. There'stwo of them?
8 comment on that quickly. 8 MR. CROCKETT: I'm sorry, Chairman. Say
9 MS. CASS: Yeah, | can jumpin on that. 9 that again?
10 There was kind of three areas where we made 10 CHMN STAFFORD: You filed the draft CECs.
11 achange. 11 There'stwo of them.
12 Thefirst one that Jeff noted around 12 MR. CROCKETT: Yes. Yes, there'stwo.
13 Sitgreaves was updated to match the CEC boundariesthat |13 They're substantially the same. One will goto APSin
14 were used for the other -- for APSsCEC. Soit'sjust 14 thefuture for their part of the gen-tie between the
15 matching that as well and expanded to include thewhole |15 points of connection -- I'm sorry, points of change of
16 section. 16 ownership and the substation or the switchyard or both.
17 The other two areas are along our optional 17 CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. And what isthe
18 routes where we've determined that there's going to be 18 permit status for the project? There's none for the
19 some additional environmental and geological constraints |19 gen-tieline but --
20 to siteit, so we wanted to expand it so that we had a 20 MR. CROCKETT: That's correct. We're
21 little bit extra buffer to site around any potentially 21 working with the Arizona State Land Department on the
22 sensitive areas. 22 right-of-way. There's-- so asyou've probably seen on
23 MR. CROCKETT: Yeah. And, Chairman 23 the map, we've got a northern route that goes from the
24 Stafford, | believe the APS CEC we'retalking about was |24 project, the collector substation, into the APS Cholla
25 approved in the West Camp proceeding. | think itsCEC |25 Substation.
Page 10 Page 12
1 206-2 maybe. 1 And then we have two southern routes that
2 CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. | guessthe question | 2 are options of each other. One option isentirely on
3 isthe changesto the corridor don't implicate any 3 privateland. The other one has a portion that's on
4 landowners that hadn't already been aware of where the 4 Arizona State Land trust -- Arizona State L and Department
5 corridor was? 5 trust land. We are working with the Arizona State Land
6 MR. ALMQUIST: That's correct. 6 Department on that. And | believe in terms of permitting
7 MR. CROCKETT: That's correct. 7 for the gen-tie, that would beit.
8 CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. And how many 8 And I'll ask Jake or Deandrato correct me
9 witness -- how many witnesses are you going to have? 9 if I'mwrong on that. I'm seeing nodding heads, so |
10 Five, it lookslike? 10 think that's correct.
11 MR. CROCKETT: Five witnesses, correct. 11 CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. And the development
12 CHMN STAFFORD: Will they be all on one 12 agreement is pending before the County?
13 panel or multiple panels? 13 MR. ALMQUIST: I'll go ahead and chimein
14 MR. CROCKETT: One panel. 14 there, Jeff, if that's all right.
15 CHMN STAFFORD: And how many total exhibits |15 We are in negotiations with the County on
16 do you have? 16 the development service agreement. We've had good
17 MR. CROCKETT: At thispointintime, 22. 17 communication, and they've reviewed, redlly, all aspects
18 CHMN STAFFORD: All right. Any legal 18 of the project as we were pretty far along the previous
19 issues or matters we need to resolve before the hearing? 19 SUP process. So we're hoping to have that finished with
20 MR. CROCKETT: Nonethat we're aware of. 20 Navajo County by the start of the first quarter of next
21 CHMN STAFFORD: And you've made the 21 year.
22 financial arrangements with the Commission? 22 CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. And there's no NEPA
23 MR. CROCKETT: Yes. 23 nexusfor this project as well; right?
24 CHMN STAFFORD: And we have not seen 24 MR. CROCKETT: That's correct. No federal
25 Staff's response to my letter yet, have we? 25 land, so no NEPA required.
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1 CHMN STAFFORD: Now, you'll have the 1 elsewe need to cover?
2 notebooks so the committee members will have the -- on 2 MR. BREWER: No, Mr. Chairman. | think
3 thetablets; correct? 3 we'real good.
4 MR. CROCKETT: That'sright. Thetablets 4 CHMN STAFFORD: Thank you very much. We're
5 will have all the exhibits loaded, and then well have a 5 dl set now. Wewill seeyou al on Monday.
6 hard copy binder in the hearing room of the exhibits. 6 MR. CROCKETT: Thank you, Chairman
7 CHMN STAFFORD: You'll have ahard copy 7 Stafford.
8 for -- well, at least two, one for me and one for the 8 CHMN STAFFORD: All right. We're
9 court reporter. And you'll have another one? 9 adjourned.
10 MR. CROCKETT: Yeah. Wevegot ahard copy |10 (Proceedings concluded at 2:16 p.m.)
11 set for the court reporter that's not hole-punched and in 11
12 abinder, and then we have a second set that will be for 12
13 the hearing room for your use. 13
14 CHMN STAFFORD: Excdlent. All right. Is 14
15 there anything else we need to cover? 15
16 MR. CROCKETT: Chairman, the only other 16
17 thing I'll note isthat Scott Neely has joined our 17
18 prehearing conferencetoday. Scott is one of my 18
19 witnesses. He'swith Terracon. So I'd just note for the 19
20 record his presence. 20
21 CHMN STAFFORD: All right. And then the 21
22 virtual attendance links, you've gotten those to Tod 22
23 aready? 23
24 MR. CROCKETT: I'm sorry. The virtual 24
25 what? 25
Page 14 Page 16
1 CHMN STAFFORD: Attendance links ; ST A
2 MR. CROCKETT: Yes. Thoselinks have been _ _
3 provided to Tod. They've been provided to Carolyn Buck | St aken et ar ekl that the R S A At
4 at the Commission. She said she would take care of e e A oo i g T hat the o oceedrnus
5 putting them on the line siting calendar. And then 5 s Sor Ene under Ty i featsonond and thereafter reduced
6 they'realso onthe projectwebsite. 6 1 CERTIFY that | amin no way related to any of the
7 CHMN STAFFORD: The links for the committee | / Parties hereto nor ami in any way interested in the
8 members? 8 | CERTIFY that | have conplied with the ethical
9 MR. CROCKETT: Well, thelinks for the 9 QoL i gat 'zggfj)s(etl)zggt(*l‘) ! Qné\cﬂé) 7-206(F) (3) and
10 public are on the project website and the Commission 10 Dated at Phoenix, Arizona, Decenber 10, 2025.
11 website. Tod hasthe -- al the linksincluding the 11
12 links for the committee members. 12
13 CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. Okay. Becausewe |13
14 don't want to get those mixed up. 14 e ENRFFERCRORN—RER————
15 MR. CROCKETT: Yeah, we don't want any 15 Arizona %_rtiSBisgg Reporter
16 impersonators. 16
17 CHMN STAFFORD: All right. Well, that's 17
18 everything | have. 18 II_ CgRTI_ F\;]thﬁt GL%NNIEI REE?RTl NG SERVI CES,f |_|_ch has
19 Isthere anything else we need, Tod? 19 AR '7?20\6'5“(5)(5) ?g)et( 15Ctahr3ug'hg?t6') ons set forthin
20 MR. CROCKETT: | don't think so. I'll just 20
21 quickly look at my team. Isthere anything else that we 21
22 haven't covered? | don't think so. 1'm getting the 22
23 thumbs-up from Deandra, so | think we're good on our end. |23 B
24 L ooking forward to the hearing next week. 24 meﬁ e
25 CHMN STAFFORD: And, Tod, isthere anything | o5 No. “R1035
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BEFORE THE AR ZONA POVWER PLANT LS- 467
AND TRANSM SSI ON LI NE SI TI NG COW TTEE

I N THE MATTER OF THE APPLI CATI ON ) DOCKET NO.
OF CHI M\EY CANYON SOLAR LLC, IN ) L-21367A-25-0232-00255
CONFORVANCE W TH THE )
REQUI RE- MENTS OF ARI ZONA REVI SED ) LS CASE NO. 255
STATUTES 88 40-360, ET SEQ, FOR)
A CERTI FI CATE OF ENVI RONIVENTAL )
COVPATI Bl LI TY AUTHORI ZI NG THE )
CH MNEY CANYON GEN-TI E LI NE )
PRQIECT, WHI CH CONSI STS OF UP TO )
TWO 500- KV OR 345-KV GEN-TI E )
LI NES THAT W LL CONNECT A )
UTI LI TY- SCALE PV SOLAR ARRAY AND )
BESS LOCATED6.5 M LES SOUTHWEST )
OF UNI NCORPORATED JOSEPH CI TY, )
NAVAJO COUNTY, ARl ZONA, )
CONNECTI NG THE CHI MNEY CANYON )
SOLAR AND BESS FACILITY TO THE )
EXI STI NG ARl ZONA PUBLI C SERVI CE )
CHOLLA SUBSTATI ON AND | F )
NECESSARY THE PLANNED ARI ZONA )
PUBLI C SERVI CE SI TGREAVES )
)
)

PREHEARI NG CONFERENCE

SW TCHYARD.

At : Phoeni x, Ari zona
Dat e: Decenber 10, 2025
Fil ed: Decenber 12, 2025

REPORTER S TRANSCRI PT OF PROCEEDI NGS
(Pages 1 through 16)

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC
Court Reporting, Video & Vi deoconferencing
1555 East Orangewood Avenue, Phoeni x, AZ 85020
602. 266. 6535 adm n@l enni e-reporti ng. com

By: Jennifer Honn, RPR
Arizona CR No. 50885
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(No exhibits.)
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BE | T REMEMBERED t hat the above-entitled and
nunbered matter cane on regularly to be heard before the
Ari zona Power Plant and Transm ssion Line Siting
Conmm ttee, commencing at 2:03 p.m on Decenber 10, 2025,

with all participants appearing via videoconference.

BEFORE: Adam St af ford, Chairnan

APPEARANCES:
For the Applicant:

Jeffrey W Crockett
CROCKETT LAW GROUP PLLC
2198 East Canel back Road
Sui te 305

Phoeni x, Arizona 85016

ALSO PRESENT:

Deborah Huntl ey, Tetra Tech

Anna Shaney, Tetra Tech

Jenni fer Skul stad, Tetra Tech

Jake Al ngui st, d earway Energy

Kal ei gh Cri ssnman, d earway Energy

Scott Neely, Terracon

Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairnman Stafford

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ
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CHWN STAFFORD: Let's go on the record.

Now is the time set for the prehearing
conference in the application of Chi mey Canyon Sol ar,
LLC, Docket No. L-21367A-25-0232-00255 for Line Siting
Case 255.

Let's start with appearances.
M. Crockett.

MR. CROCKETT: Thank you, Chairnman
Stafford. Jeff Crockett appearing on behalf of the
appl i cant, Chi mmey Canyon Sol ar, LLC

Let me just quickly introduce those that
are on the call. W have Jake Al mgui st and Deandra Cass
who are with the applicant. And we've got Anna Shaney
and Jennifer Skul stad and Deborah Huntley that are with
Tetra Tech. | think that's our crew today.

CHWN STAFFORD: All right. So we've got
| odgi ng arranged for the commttee nenbers at the Little
Ameri ca?

MR CROCKETT: Yes, we do. |It's all set to
go.

CHWN STAFFORD: Excellent. | have not seen
any requests to intervene.

MR, CROCKETT: There have been no requests
to intervene. There was soneone today that filed a
limted appearance. That's Bryan Jolley who we know of.

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ
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We don't think he's hostile toward the project. He's
actually been interested in possibly becom ng one of the
partici pating | andowners.

We have reached out to himtoday regarding
his requests that he filed just to see what he's planning
in ternms of public comment next week. But, like | said,
at this point, we don't anticipate an antagonistic
response.

CHWN STAFFORD: Al right. Well, it |ooks
li ke they docketed it calling it a limted appearance,
but | |looked at it and that is not what it is. [It's just
his request to nake public coment, which he will be
all owed to do when we have public coment on the 15th at
5:30. So I'mnot going to enter his e-mail as an exhibit
at the heari ng.

MR CROCKETT: GCkay. That's fine with us.

CHWN STAFFORD: Okay. Wuld you agree that
May 5, 2026, is the tine limt for the commttee to act
in conpliance with statute?

MR CROCKETT: Yes.

CHWN STAFFORD: Okay. And you filed your
outreach, which had the notice to the affected
jurisdictions, certified mil with Pinal County and
Arizona State -- not Pinal. Apache County?

MR. CROCKETT: Navaj o County.

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ
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CHWN STAFFORD: Navajo County. And State
Land Departnent; right?

MR CROCKETT: Correct. And they both
recei ved notice of hearing, the procedural order, and the
agenda.

CHWN STAFFORD: And you conplied with the
posting and publishing requirenents. Looks |like you
publ i shed on the 12th and 13th, nore than 30 days before
t he hearing start date.

And you had the three signs; is that
correct.

MR. CROCKETT: That's correct. The signs
are up. And earlier today | posted the affidavit of
Jenni fer Skul stad that evidences the posting of those
si gns on Novenber 24.

CHWN STAFFORD: All right. And then the
application, those were nade available to two different
l'i brari es?

MR CROCKETT: Yes, it has. | believe one
l'ibrary and then the Hol brook City Hall.

s that, Jennifer -- | see Jennifer noddi ng
her head yes.

So they have the application and the
transcript of the prefiling conference.

CHWN STAFFORD: Excellent. Excellent. And

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ
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those are also on the project website; correct?

MR. CROCKETT: Yes, they are. There's a
whol e host of things on the project website. So it's
very well done.

CHWN STAFFORD: All right. | assune you' ve
had an opportunity to review the agenda. Are there any
obj ections or additions to it?

MR, CROCKETT: No.

CHWN STAFFORD: W're starting the hearing
Monday the 15th at 1: 00, with public coments at
5: 30 that day.

How many days do you antici pate the hearing
to last?

MR. CROCKETT: W should finish on Tuesday
unl ess the commttee elects to take a tour. As you

probably are aware, the tour would take a fair anount of

time. It's alittle over an hour each way driving, so
| ' m guessing three to four hours would fill up Tuesday
norning. Potentially we could still finish on Tuesday,

but a tour would naybe push us into Wdnesday.

CHWN STAFFORD: Ckay.

MR CROCKETT: W do have a virtual tour
ready to present.

CHWN STAFFORD: Well, let's hope that's
sufficient because |"'mnot inclined to do a tour for

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ
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this. But we'll see what the wll of the nenbers is.

| assune you have Peaks doing the --

MR CROCKETT: Yes, Peaks Audio is our
audi o/ video team for the hearing.

CHWN STAFFORD: Okay. All right, we'll
have sign-in forns for the public comrent.

MR CROCKETT: Yes.

CHWN STAFFORD: |Is there -- there's not
going to be any kind of need for security at this
hearing, is there?

MR CROCKETT: | don't think so. W
haven't -- we haven't had any indication that there would
be a need for security.

CHWN STAFFORD: Okay. The attire for the
hearing i s business casual.

Are there any other issues regarding the
hearing itsel f?

MR. CROCKETT: No. No issues regarding the
hearing itself.

"1l just nmention to you, Chairnman, that
t he application, when we filed, had a map of the proposed
corridors. W have updated that slightly, primarily the
area around the APS Sitgreaves Substation -- sw tchyard,
rather. W' ve provided the updated project map with the
revi sed and updated corridor on the project website. And

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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we' || have that as an exhibit for the hearing.

CHWN STAFFORD: Okay. Wat's the change to
t he corridor?

MR CROCKETT: You know, it broadened out
around the APS switchyard. And | think that's really the
nost significant change, if not the only one.

Let me ask either Jake or Deandra to
coment on that quickly.

M5. CASS: Yeah, | can junp in on that.

There was kind of three areas where we nade
a change.

The first one that Jeff noted around
Sitgreaves was updated to match the CEC boundaries that
were used for the other -- for APS's CEC. So it's just
mat chi ng that as well and expanded to include the whole
section.

The other two areas are al ong our optional
routes where we've determned that there's going to be
sone additional environnental and geol ogi cal constraints
to site it, so we wanted to expand it so that we had a
little bit extra buffer to site around any potentially
sensitive areas.

MR CROCKETT: Yeah. And, Chair man

Stafford, | believe the APS CEC we're tal king about was
approved in the West Canp proceeding. | think it's CEC
GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535

www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ
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206- 2 maybe.

CHWN STAFFORD: Okay. | guess the question
is the changes to the corridor don't inplicate any
| andowners that hadn't already been aware of where the
corridor was?

MR, ALMQUI ST: That's correct.

MR, CROCKETT: That's correct.

CHWN STAFFORD: kay. And how many
W tness -- how many w tnesses are you going to have?
Five, it | ooks |ike?

MR CROCKETT: Five w tnesses, correct.

CHWN STAFFORD: WI Il they be all on one
panel or multiple panels?

MR. CROCKETT: One panel.

CHWN STAFFORD: And how many total exhibits
do you have?

MR, CROCKETT: At this point in tine, 22.

CHWN STAFFORD: All right. Any | egal
I ssues or matters we need to resol ve before the hearing?

MR CROCKETT: None that we're aware of.

CHWN STAFFORD: And you' ve nmde the
financial arrangenents with the Comm ssion?

MR CROCKETT: Yes.

CHWN STAFFORD: And we have not seen
Staff's response to ny letter yet, have we?

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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MR CROCKETT: W have not.

CHWN STAFFORD: Okay. It'll probably get
filed this afternoon or tonorrow.

MR CROCKETT: | hope so. Those tend to
cone in at the 11th hour.

CHWN STAFFORD: Yeah. Al right. So
you've got the draft CEC. There's two of thenf

MR. CROCKETT: |'msorry, Chairman. Say
t hat agai n?

CHWN STAFFORD: You filed the draft CECs.
There's two of them

MR CROCKETT: Yes. Yes, there's two.
They're substantially the same. One wll go to APS in
the future for their part of the gen-tie between the
poi nts of connection -- I'msorry, points of change of
owner shi p and the substation or the switchyard or both.

CHWN STAFFORD: Okay. And what is the
permt status for the project? There's none for the
gen-tie line but --

MR CROCKETT: That's correct. W're
working with the Arizona State Land Departnent on the
right-of-way. There's -- so as you' ve probably seen on
the map, we've got a northern route that goes fromthe
project, the collector substation, into the APS Choll a
Subst ati on.

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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And then we have two southern routes that
are options of each other. One option is entirely on
private land. The other one has a portion that's on
Arizona State Land trust -- Arizona State Land Depart nent
trust land. W are working with the Arizona State Land
Departnent on that. And | believe in terns of permitting
for the gen-tie, that would be it.

And I'1l ask Jake or Deandra to correct ne
if I"'mwong on that. |'m seeing noddi ng heads, so |
think that's correct.

CHWN STAFFORD: Ckay. And the devel opnent
agreenent is pending before the County?

MR ALMQUI ST: 1'll go ahead and chine in
there, Jeff, if that's all right.

We are in negotiations with the County on
t he devel opnent service agreenent. W've had good
communi cati on, and they've reviewed, really, all aspects
of the project as we were pretty far along the previous
SUP process. So we're hoping to have that finished wth
Navaj o County by the start of the first quarter of next
year.

CHWN STAFFORD: Okay. And there's no NEPA
nexus for this project as well; right?

MR CROCKETT: That's correct. No federal
| and, so no NEPA required.

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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CHWN STAFFORD: Now, you'll have the
not ebooks so the commttee nenbers will have the -- on
the tablets; correct?

MR CROCKETT: That's right. The tablets
will have all the exhibits | oaded, and then we'll have a
hard copy binder in the hearing roomof the exhibits.

CHWN STAFFORD: You'll have a hard copy
for -- well, at least two, one for ne and one for the
court reporter. And you'll have another one?

MR. CROCKETT: Yeah. W' ve got a hard copy
set for the court reporter that's not hol e-punched and in
a binder, and then we have a second set that will be for
the hearing room for your use.

CHWN STAFFORD: Excellent. Al right. Is
t here anything el se we need to cover?

MR CROCKETT: Chairman, the only other
thing I'll note is that Scott Neely has joi ned our
prehearing conference today. Scott is one of ny
W tnesses. He's with Terracon. So |I'd just note for the
record his presence.

CHWN STAFFORD: All right. And then the

virtual attendance |inks, you' ve gotten those to Tod

al ready?
MR, CROCKETT: |I'msorry. The virtual
what ?
GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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CHWN STAFFCRD: Attendance |inks --

MR, CROCKETT: Yes. Those |inks have been
provided to Tod. They've been provided to Carol yn Buck
at the Comm ssion. She said she would take care of
putting themon the line siting calendar. And then
they're also on the project website.

CHWN STAFFORD: The |links for the conmttee
menber s?

MR CROCKETT: Well, the links for the
public are on the project website and the Conm ssion
website. Tod has the -- all the links including the
i nks for the commttee nenbers.

CHWN STAFFORD: Okay. Okay. Because we
don't want to get those m xed up.

MR. CROCKETT: Yeah, we don't want any
i nper sonat or s.

CHWN STAFFORD: Al right. WwWll, that's
everything | have.

Is there anything el se we need, Tod?

MR, CROCKETT: | don't think so. [I'll just
qui ckly look at ny team |Is there anything else that we
haven't covered? | don't think so. |I'mgetting the

t hunbs-up from Deandra, so | think we're good on our end.
Looking forward to the hearing next week.
CHWN STAFFORD: And, Tod, is there anything

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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el se we need to cover?

we'

MR. BREVER: No, M. Chairnan. | thin

re all good.

CHWN STAFFORD

Thank you very much.

Thank you, Chairnman

Al right. W're

all set now W wll see you all on Monday.
MR, CROCKETT:

St af f or d.
CHWN STAFFORD:

adj our ned.

(Proceedi ngs concluded at 2:16 p.m)
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STATE OF ARI ZONA )
)
COUNTY OF MARI CCOPA )

BE | T KNOMNN that the foregoi ng proceedi ngs were
t aken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,
true, and accurate record of the proceedings, all done to
the best of ny skill and ability; that the proceedi ngs
were taken down by ne in shorthand and thereafter reduced
to print under ny direction.

| CERTIFY that | amin no way related to any of the
parties hereto nor aml in any way interested in the
out cone her eof .

| CERTIFY that | have conplied with the ethical
obligations set forth in ACIA 7-206(F)(3) and
ACJIA 7-206(J)(1)(9) (1) and (2).

Dat ed at Phoeni x, Ari zona, Decenber 10, 2025.

JENNI FER HONN, RPR

Arizona Certified Reporter
No. 50885

| CERTIFY that GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC, has
complied with the ethical obligations set forth in
ACIA 7-206(J)(L)( R

Y

e s

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC
Arizona Regi stered Firm
No. R1035

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ





		Index

		 Number Index

		1

		11th (1)

		12th (1)

		13th (1)

		15th (2)

		1:00 (1)



		2

		2026 (1)

		206-2 (1)

		22 (1)

		24 (1)

		255 (1)

		2:16 (1)



		3

		30 (1)



		5

		5 (1)

		5:30(2)





		A

		act (1)

		actually (1)

		additional (1)

		additions (1)

		adjourned (1)

		affected (1)

		affidavit (1)

		afternoon (1)

		again (1)

		agenda (2)

		agree (1)

		agreement (2)

		ahead (1)

		allowed (1)

		Almquist (3)

		along (2)

		America (1)

		amount (1)

		Anna (1)

		antagonistic (1)

		anticipate (2)

		Apache (1)

		appearance (2)

		appearances (1)

		appearing (1)

		applicant (2)

		application (4)

		approved (1)

		APS (5)

		APS's (1)

		area (1)

		areas (3)

		Arizona (5)

		around (4)

		arranged (1)

		arrangements (1)

		aspects (1)

		assume (2)

		attendance (2)

		attire (1)

		Audio (1)

		audio/video (1)

		available (1)

		aware (3)



		B

		becoming (1)

		behalf (1)

		binder (2)

		bit (1)

		both (2)

		boundaries (1)

		BREWER (1)

		broadened (1)

		Bryan (1)

		Buck (1)

		buffer (1)

		business (1)



		C

		calendar (1)

		call (1)

		calling (1)

		Camp (1)

		can (1)

		Canyon (2)

		care (1)

		Carolyn (1)

		Case (1)

		Cass (2)

		casual (1)

		CEC (5)

		CECs (1)

		certified (1)

		Chairman (7)

		change (4)

		changes (1)

		chime (1)

		Chimney (2)

		CHMN (42)

		Cholla (1)

		City (1)

		collector (1)

		comment (5)

		comments (1)

		Commission (3)

		committee (6)

		communication (1)

		compliance (1)

		complied (1)

		concluded (1)

		conference (3)

		connection (1)

		constraints (1)

		copy (3)

		corridor (4)

		corridors (1)

		County (7)

		court (2)

		cover (2)

		covered (1)

		crew (1)

		Crockett (42)



		D

		date (1)

		day (1)

		days (2)

		Deandra (4)

		Deborah (1)

		Department (4)

		determined (1)

		development (2)

		different (1)

		Docket (1)

		docketed (1)

		done (1)

		draft (2)

		driving (1)



		E

		e-mail (1)

		earlier (1)

		either (1)

		elects (1)

		else (4)

		end (1)

		enter (1)

		entirely (1)

		environmental (1)

		evidences (1)

		Excellent (4)

		exhibit (2)

		exhibits (3)

		expand (1)

		expanded (1)

		extra (1)



		F

		fair (1)

		far (1)

		federal (1)

		filed (6)

		fill (1)

		financial (1)

		fine (1)

		finish (2)

		finished (1)

		first (2)

		Five (2)

		forms (1)

		forward (1)

		four (1)

		future (1)



		G

		gen-tie (3)

		geological (1)

		goes (1)

		good (3)

		guess (1)

		guessing (1)



		H

		Hall (1)

		hard (3)

		head (1)

		heads (1)

		hearing (15)

		Holbrook (1)

		hole-punched (1)

		hope (2)

		hoping (1)

		host (1)

		hostile (1)

		hour (2)

		hours (1)

		Huntley (1)



		I

		impersonators (1)

		implicate (1)

		inclined (1)

		include (1)

		including (1)

		indication (1)

		interested (1)

		intervene (2)

		into (2)

		introduce (1)

		issues (3)



		J

		Jake (3)

		Jeff (3)

		Jennifer (4)

		joined (1)

		Jolley (1)

		jump (1)

		jurisdictions (1)



		K

		kind (2)



		L

		L-21367A-25-0232-00255 (1)

		Land (8)

		landowners (2)

		last (1)

		least (1)

		legal (1)

		letter (1)

		libraries (1)

		library (1)

		limit (1)

		limited (2)

		Line (3)

		links (7)

		Little (3)

		LLC (2)

		loaded (1)

		lodging (1)

		look (1)

		looked (1)

		Looking (1)

		looks (3)



		M

		mail (1)

		many (4)

		map (3)

		match (1)

		matching (1)

		matters (1)

		May (1)

		maybe (2)

		members (5)

		mention (1)

		mixed (1)

		Monday (2)

		more (1)

		morning (1)

		most (1)

		much (1)

		multiple (1)



		N

		Navajo (3)

		need (6)

		Neely (1)

		negotiations (1)

		NEPA (2)

		next (3)

		nexus (1)

		nodding (2)

		None (2)

		northern (1)

		note (2)

		notebooks (1)

		noted (1)

		notice (2)

		November (1)



		O

		objections (1)

		one (13)

		only (2)

		opportunity (1)

		option (1)

		optional (1)

		options (1)

		order (1)

		out (2)

		outreach (1)

		over (1)

		ownership (1)



		P

		panel (2)

		panels (1)

		part (1)

		participating (1)

		Peaks (2)

		pending (1)

		permit (1)

		permitting (1)

		Pinal (2)

		planning (1)

		pm (1)

		point (2)

		points (2)

		portion (1)

		possibly (1)

		posted (1)

		posting (2)

		Potentially (2)

		prefiling (1)

		prehearing (2)

		presence (1)

		present (1)

		pretty (1)

		previous (1)

		primarily (1)

		private (1)

		probably (3)

		procedural (1)

		proceeding (1)

		Proceedings (1)

		process (1)

		project (11)

		proposed (1)

		provided (3)

		public (6)

		published (1)

		publishing (1)

		push (1)

		putting (1)



		Q

		quarter (1)

		quickly (3)



		R

		rather (1)

		reached (1)

		ready (1)

		really (2)

		received (1)

		record (2)

		regarding (3)

		reporter (2)

		request (1)

		requests (3)

		required (1)

		requirements (1)

		resolve (1)

		response (2)

		review (1)

		reviewed (1)

		revised (1)

		right (15)

		right-of-way (1)

		room (2)

		route (1)

		routes (2)



		S

		same (1)

		Scott (2)

		second (1)

		section (1)

		security (2)

		seeing (1)

		sensitive (1)

		service (1)

		set (5)

		Shamey (1)

		sign-in (1)

		significant (1)

		signs (3)

		site (2)

		Sitgreaves (2)

		Siting (2)

		Skulstad (2)

		slightly (1)

		Solar (2)

		someone (1)

		sorry (3)

		southern (1)

		Staff's (1)

		STAFFORD (45)

		start (3)

		starting (1)

		State (6)

		status (1)

		statute (1)

		still (1)

		substantially (1)

		Substation (4)

		sufficient (1)

		SUP (1)

		switchyard (3)



		T

		tablets (2)

		talking (1)

		team (2)

		Tech (1)

		tend (1)

		terms (2)

		Terracon (1)

		Tetra (1)

		three (3)

		thumbs-up (1)

		Tod (5)

		today (5)

		tomorrow (1)

		total (1)

		tour (5)

		toward (1)

		transcript (1)

		trust (2)

		Tuesday (3)

		two (7)



		U

		unless (1)

		up (3)

		updated (4)

		use (1)

		used (1)



		V

		virtual (3)



		W

		way (1)

		website (6)

		Wednesday (1)

		week (2)

		West (1)

		What's (1)

		whole (2)

		witness (1)

		witnesses (3)

		working (2)

		wrong (1)



		Y

		year (1)












                 LS CASE NO. 255      PREHEARING CONFERENCE      12/10/2025

                                                                      1





           1   BEFORE THE ARIZONA POWER PLANT              LS-467



           2   AND TRANSMISSION LINE SITING COMMITTEE



           3   IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION ) DOCKET NO.

               OF CHIMNEY CANYON SOLAR LLC, IN  ) L-21367A-25-0232-00255

           4   CONFORMANCE WITH THE             )

               REQUIRE-MENTS OF ARIZONA REVISED ) LS CASE NO. 255

           5   STATUTES §§ 40-360, ET SEQ., FOR )

               A CERTIFICATE OF ENVIRONMENTAL   )

           6   COMPATIBILITY AUTHORIZING THE    )

               CHIMNEY CANYON GEN-TIE LINE      )

           7   PROJECT, WHICH CONSISTS OF UP TO )

               TWO 500-KV OR 345-KV GEN-TIE     )

           8   LINES THAT WILL CONNECT A        )

               UTILITY-SCALE PV SOLAR ARRAY AND )

           9   BESS LOCATED6.5 MILES SOUTHWEST  )

               OF UNINCORPORATED JOSEPH CITY,   )

          10   NAVAJO COUNTY, ARIZONA,          )

               CONNECTING THE CHIMNEY CANYON    )

          11   SOLAR AND BESS FACILITY TO THE   )

               EXISTING ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE  )

          12   CHOLLA SUBSTATION AND IF         )

               NECESSARY THE PLANNED ARIZONA    ) PREHEARING CONFERENCE

          13   PUBLIC SERVICE SITGREAVES        )

               SWITCHYARD.                      )

          14   ________________________________ )



          15   At:       Phoenix, Arizona



          16   Date:     December 10, 2025



          17   Filed:    December 12, 2025



          18



          19              REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS



          20                      (Pages 1 through 16)



          21



          22                          GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC

                             Court Reporting, Video & Videoconferencing

          23              1555 East Orangewood Avenue, Phoenix, AZ 85020

                             602.266.6535   admin@glennie-reporting.com

          24

                                              By:  Jennifer Honn, RPR

          25                                     Arizona CR No. 50885
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           1        BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and



           2   numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the



           3   Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting



           4   Committee, commencing at 2:03 p.m. on December 10, 2025,



           5   with all participants appearing via videoconference.



           6



           7   BEFORE:  Adam Stafford, Chairman



           8



           9   APPEARANCES:



          10   For the Applicant:



          11       Jeffrey W. Crockett

                   CROCKETT LAW GROUP PLLC

          12       2198 East Camelback Road

                   Suite 305

          13       Phoenix, Arizona  85016



          14   ALSO PRESENT:



          15       Deborah Huntley, Tetra Tech

                   Anna Shamey, Tetra Tech

          16       Jennifer Skulstad, Tetra Tech

                   Jake Almquist, Clearway Energy

          17       Kaleigh Crissman, Clearway Energy

                   Scott Neely, Terracon

          18       Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairman Stafford



          19
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          24



          25
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           1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Let's go on the record.



           2                 Now is the time set for the prehearing



           3   conference in the application of Chimney Canyon Solar,



           4   LLC, Docket No. L-21367A-25-0232-00255 for Line Siting



           5   Case 255.



           6                 Let's start with appearances.



           7   Mr. Crockett.



           8                 MR. CROCKETT:  Thank you, Chairman



           9   Stafford.  Jeff Crockett appearing on behalf of the



          10   applicant, Chimney Canyon Solar, LLC.



          11                 Let me just quickly introduce those that



          12   are on the call.  We have Jake Almquist and Deandra Cass



          13   who are with the applicant.  And we've got Anna Shamey



          14   and Jennifer Skulstad and Deborah Huntley that are with



          15   Tetra Tech.  I think that's our crew today.



          16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  So we've got



          17   lodging arranged for the committee members at the Little



          18   America?



          19                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes, we do.  It's all set to



          20   go.



          21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Excellent.  I have not seen



          22   any requests to intervene.



          23                 MR. CROCKETT:  There have been no requests



          24   to intervene.  There was someone today that filed a



          25   limited appearance.  That's Bryan Jolley who we know of.
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           1   We don't think he's hostile toward the project.  He's



           2   actually been interested in possibly becoming one of the



           3   participating landowners.



           4                 We have reached out to him today regarding



           5   his requests that he filed just to see what he's planning



           6   in terms of public comment next week.  But, like I said,



           7   at this point, we don't anticipate an antagonistic



           8   response.



           9                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Well, it looks



          10   like they docketed it calling it a limited appearance,



          11   but I looked at it and that is not what it is.  It's just



          12   his request to make public comment, which he will be



          13   allowed to do when we have public comment on the 15th at



          14   5:30.  So I'm not going to enter his e-mail as an exhibit



          15   at the hearing.



          16                 MR. CROCKETT:  Okay.  That's fine with us.



          17                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Would you agree that



          18   May 5, 2026, is the time limit for the committee to act



          19   in compliance with statute?



          20                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.



          21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And you filed your



          22   outreach, which had the notice to the affected



          23   jurisdictions, certified mail with Pinal County and



          24   Arizona State -- not Pinal.  Apache County?



          25                 MR. CROCKETT:  Navajo County.
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           1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Navajo County.  And State



           2   Land Department; right?



           3                 MR. CROCKETT:  Correct.  And they both



           4   received notice of hearing, the procedural order, and the



           5   agenda.



           6                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And you complied with the



           7   posting and publishing requirements.  Looks like you



           8   published on the 12th and 13th, more than 30 days before



           9   the hearing start date.



          10                 And you had the three signs; is that



          11   correct.



          12                 MR. CROCKETT:  That's correct.  The signs



          13   are up.  And earlier today I posted the affidavit of



          14   Jennifer Skulstad that evidences the posting of those



          15   signs on November 24.



          16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  And then the



          17   application, those were made available to two different



          18   libraries?



          19                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes, it has.  I believe one



          20   library and then the Holbrook City Hall.



          21                 Is that, Jennifer -- I see Jennifer nodding



          22   her head yes.



          23                 So they have the application and the



          24   transcript of the prefiling conference.



          25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Excellent.  Excellent.  And





                  GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC      602.266.6535



                  www.glennie-reporting.com             Phoenix, AZ

�



                 LS CASE NO. 255      PREHEARING CONFERENCE      12/10/2025

                                                                      7





           1   those are also on the project website; correct?



           2                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes, they are.  There's a



           3   whole host of things on the project website.  So it's



           4   very well done.



           5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  I assume you've



           6   had an opportunity to review the agenda.  Are there any



           7   objections or additions to it?



           8                 MR. CROCKETT:  No.



           9                 CHMN STAFFORD:  We're starting the hearing



          10   Monday the 15th at 1:00, with public comments at



          11   5:30 that day.



          12                 How many days do you anticipate the hearing



          13   to last?



          14                 MR. CROCKETT:  We should finish on Tuesday



          15   unless the committee elects to take a tour.  As you



          16   probably are aware, the tour would take a fair amount of



          17   time.  It's a little over an hour each way driving, so



          18   I'm guessing three to four hours would fill up Tuesday



          19   morning.  Potentially we could still finish on Tuesday,



          20   but a tour would maybe push us into Wednesday.



          21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.



          22                 MR. CROCKETT:  We do have a virtual tour



          23   ready to present.



          24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Well, let's hope that's



          25   sufficient because I'm not inclined to do a tour for
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           1   this.  But we'll see what the will of the members is.



           2                 I assume you have Peaks doing the --



           3                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes, Peaks Audio is our



           4   audio/video team for the hearing.



           5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  All right, we'll



           6   have sign-in forms for the public comment.



           7                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.



           8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Is there -- there's not



           9   going to be any kind of need for security at this



          10   hearing, is there?



          11                 MR. CROCKETT:  I don't think so.  We



          12   haven't -- we haven't had any indication that there would



          13   be a need for security.



          14                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  The attire for the



          15   hearing is business casual.



          16                 Are there any other issues regarding the



          17   hearing itself?



          18                 MR. CROCKETT:  No.  No issues regarding the



          19   hearing itself.



          20                 I'll just mention to you, Chairman, that



          21   the application, when we filed, had a map of the proposed



          22   corridors.  We have updated that slightly, primarily the



          23   area around the APS Sitgreaves Substation -- switchyard,



          24   rather.  We've provided the updated project map with the



          25   revised and updated corridor on the project website.  And
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           1   we'll have that as an exhibit for the hearing.



           2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  What's the change to



           3   the corridor?



           4                 MR. CROCKETT:  You know, it broadened out



           5   around the APS switchyard.  And I think that's really the



           6   most significant change, if not the only one.



           7                 Let me ask either Jake or Deandra to



           8   comment on that quickly.



           9                 MS. CASS:  Yeah, I can jump in on that.



          10                 There was kind of three areas where we made



          11   a change.



          12                 The first one that Jeff noted around



          13   Sitgreaves was updated to match the CEC boundaries that



          14   were used for the other -- for APS's CEC.  So it's just



          15   matching that as well and expanded to include the whole



          16   section.



          17                 The other two areas are along our optional



          18   routes where we've determined that there's going to be



          19   some additional environmental and geological constraints



          20   to site it, so we wanted to expand it so that we had a



          21   little bit extra buffer to site around any potentially



          22   sensitive areas.



          23                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yeah.  And, Chairman



          24   Stafford, I believe the APS CEC we're talking about was



          25   approved in the West Camp proceeding.  I think it's CEC
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           1   206-2 maybe.



           2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  I guess the question



           3   is the changes to the corridor don't implicate any



           4   landowners that hadn't already been aware of where the



           5   corridor was?



           6                 MR. ALMQUIST:  That's correct.



           7                 MR. CROCKETT:  That's correct.



           8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And how many



           9   witness -- how many witnesses are you going to have?



          10   Five, it looks like?



          11                 MR. CROCKETT:  Five witnesses, correct.



          12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Will they be all on one



          13   panel or multiple panels?



          14                 MR. CROCKETT:  One panel.



          15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And how many total exhibits



          16   do you have?



          17                 MR. CROCKETT:  At this point in time, 22.



          18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Any legal



          19   issues or matters we need to resolve before the hearing?



          20                 MR. CROCKETT:  None that we're aware of.



          21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And you've made the



          22   financial arrangements with the Commission?



          23                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.



          24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And we have not seen



          25   Staff's response to my letter yet, have we?
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           1                 MR. CROCKETT:  We have not.



           2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  It'll probably get



           3   filed this afternoon or tomorrow.



           4                 MR. CROCKETT:  I hope so.  Those tend to



           5   come in at the 11th hour.



           6                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Yeah.  All right.  So



           7   you've got the draft CEC.  There's two of them?



           8                 MR. CROCKETT:  I'm sorry, Chairman.  Say



           9   that again?



          10                 CHMN STAFFORD:  You filed the draft CECs.



          11   There's two of them.



          12                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.  Yes, there's two.



          13   They're substantially the same.  One will go to APS in



          14   the future for their part of the gen-tie between the



          15   points of connection -- I'm sorry, points of change of



          16   ownership and the substation or the switchyard or both.



          17                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And what is the



          18   permit status for the project?  There's none for the



          19   gen-tie line but --



          20                 MR. CROCKETT:  That's correct.  We're



          21   working with the Arizona State Land Department on the



          22   right-of-way.  There's -- so as you've probably seen on



          23   the map, we've got a northern route that goes from the



          24   project, the collector substation, into the APS Cholla



          25   Substation.
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           1                 And then we have two southern routes that



           2   are options of each other.  One option is entirely on



           3   private land.  The other one has a portion that's on



           4   Arizona State Land trust -- Arizona State Land Department



           5   trust land.  We are working with the Arizona State Land



           6   Department on that.  And I believe in terms of permitting



           7   for the gen-tie, that would be it.



           8                 And I'll ask Jake or Deandra to correct me



           9   if I'm wrong on that.  I'm seeing nodding heads, so I



          10   think that's correct.



          11                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And the development



          12   agreement is pending before the County?



          13                 MR. ALMQUIST:  I'll go ahead and chime in



          14   there, Jeff, if that's all right.



          15                 We are in negotiations with the County on



          16   the development service agreement.  We've had good



          17   communication, and they've reviewed, really, all aspects



          18   of the project as we were pretty far along the previous



          19   SUP process.  So we're hoping to have that finished with



          20   Navajo County by the start of the first quarter of next



          21   year.



          22                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And there's no NEPA



          23   nexus for this project as well; right?



          24                 MR. CROCKETT:  That's correct.  No federal



          25   land, so no NEPA required.
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           1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Now, you'll have the



           2   notebooks so the committee members will have the -- on



           3   the tablets; correct?



           4                 MR. CROCKETT:  That's right.  The tablets



           5   will have all the exhibits loaded, and then we'll have a



           6   hard copy binder in the hearing room of the exhibits.



           7                 CHMN STAFFORD:  You'll have a hard copy



           8   for -- well, at least two, one for me and one for the



           9   court reporter.  And you'll have another one?



          10                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yeah.  We've got a hard copy



          11   set for the court reporter that's not hole-punched and in



          12   a binder, and then we have a second set that will be for



          13   the hearing room for your use.



          14                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Excellent.  All right.  Is



          15   there anything else we need to cover?



          16                 MR. CROCKETT:  Chairman, the only other



          17   thing I'll note is that Scott Neely has joined our



          18   prehearing conference today.  Scott is one of my



          19   witnesses.  He's with Terracon.  So I'd just note for the



          20   record his presence.



          21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  And then the



          22   virtual attendance links, you've gotten those to Tod



          23   already?



          24                 MR. CROCKETT:  I'm sorry.  The virtual



          25   what?
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           1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Attendance links --



           2                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yes.  Those links have been



           3   provided to Tod.  They've been provided to Carolyn Buck



           4   at the Commission.  She said she would take care of



           5   putting them on the line siting calendar.  And then



           6   they're also on the project website.



           7                 CHMN STAFFORD:  The links for the committee



           8   members?



           9                 MR. CROCKETT:  Well, the links for the



          10   public are on the project website and the Commission



          11   website.  Tod has the -- all the links including the



          12   links for the committee members.



          13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Okay.  Because we



          14   don't want to get those mixed up.



          15                 MR. CROCKETT:  Yeah, we don't want any



          16   impersonators.



          17                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Well, that's



          18   everything I have.



          19                 Is there anything else we need, Tod?



          20                 MR. CROCKETT:  I don't think so.  I'll just



          21   quickly look at my team.  Is there anything else that we



          22   haven't covered?  I don't think so.  I'm getting the



          23   thumbs-up from Deandra, so I think we're good on our end.



          24   Looking forward to the hearing next week.



          25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And, Tod, is there anything
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           1   else we need to cover?



           2                 MR. BREWER:  No, Mr. Chairman.  I think



           3   we're all good.



           4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Thank you very much.  We're



           5   all set now.  We will see you all on Monday.



           6                 MR. CROCKETT:  Thank you, Chairman



           7   Stafford.



           8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  We're



           9   adjourned.



          10                 (Proceedings concluded at 2:16 p.m.)
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